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Sited on South King Street in the midst of a medium density urban area, 
the McKinley High School campus is distinguished by its central quad­ 
rangle with a spacious lawn bordered on two sides by seventeen Chinese 
banyan trees, which were planted by students in the late nineteen 
twenties. Surrounding the quadrangle are the four original classroom 
buildings and the Marion McCarrell Scott Auditorium, all of which are 
stucco veneered, reinforced concrete structures rendered in the Spanish 
Colonial revival style. Another significant historic building, The 
Senior Core Building, is located at the Ewa-makai (west) corner of the 
quadrangle. Other features on the quadrangle include a flagpole in the 
center, and a statue of President William McKinley, which stands in the 
middle of an oval drive at the head of the quadrangle, and is flanked 
on either side by, a monk.ey .pod tree. Th,e eight fop.t -high, bronze, statue 
rests on a nine footl pedestal made of,,Hurricane. Island, granite by the 
Bardwill'Granite Company of Rockland/ Maine. The statue is the work of 
Curzon Usborne, a Honolulu sculptor, and was cast in one piece by the 
firm of Bartelli in New York, which employed the then innovative "lost 
wax" technique.

The Buildings:

1. The Commerical Building is a two-story rectangular structure with a 
red tile hipped roof. It has a center section of nine bays with outset 
wings at either end. The end bays of the center section contain round 
arched entries which are elaborately embellished with terra cotta. Above 
these entries are a pair of second story round arched, double hung sash 
windows. The remainder of the windows in the center section are casement, 
with the first story windows featuring round arched architraval trim. The 
wings are distinguished by three second story round arched windows with 
wreathed columns. The wings' windows are casement with six panes, and 
between the first and second stories is a tile panel with a cartouche. 
The wings terminate with a false front gable with a blind arcade.

2. The Home Economics Building is a one-story, rectangular structure with 
a red tile hipped roof which is connected to the Commercial Building by a 
single story, round arched arcade of six bays. The arcade has a red tile 
gabled roof and a set of centered steps leading to it. The Home Economics 
Building is seven bays long with a centered round arched entry with a 
gabled roof dominating the facade. To either side of the entry are five 
casement windows which are flanked by small round arched windows. The 
primary design feature of the structure is an elaborately decorated round 
arched entry with a gabled roof on the mauka (mountain, King Street) side 
of the building. On either side of the decorative archway are free­ 
standing columns which support ceramic owls.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The McKinley High School is significant in the history of education in the 
State of Hawaii as the oldest high school in the State and the leading 
public school in Hawaii during the nineteen twenties and thirties.

The history of McKinley as a school can be traced back to the Fort Street 
School of 1865. This school in 1895 was split into Kaiulani Elementary 
School and Honolulu High School. The latter was located in Princess Ruth's 
Palace on Emma Street until 1908 when the present Linekona School was 
completed. At the time of the dedication of this new building on Victoria 
Street, the school's name was changed to McKinley, in honor of the mar­ 
tyred president who had annexed Hawaii as a territory of the United States. 
The school quickly outgrew its new building and in 1922 plans were drawn 
by Davis § Fishbourne for a new campus on King Street. The Commercial (1) 
and Mathematics (4) Buildings were completed in 1923 and the Art (3) and 
Home Economics (2) Buildings were finished in the following year, at 
which time the entire student body began using the new campus. The 

- Marion McCarrell Scott Auditorium (5), also designed by Davis § Fishbourne, 
was dedicated to former principal Scott in May 1928. At the time of its 
dedication, it was the largest theater in Hawaii with a seating capacity 
of 1,114. As such, it served not only the students but the community at 
large, with famous singers and lecturers performing there. The next 
substantial building erected on the campus was the Senior Core Building 
(6), a WPA financed project. Louis Davis, the designer of the other 
campus buildings, was in retirement at this time, but was commissioned to 
design this building with Vladimir Ossipoff, who did the actual work. 
Since World War II, numerous buildings have been constructed on the campus, 
but these are of a more modern and functional design and are not included 
in this nomination.

Through the nineteen twenties more than half of the high school students 
in Hawaii attended McKinley. Among its 1929 student body of 2,339, 43% 
were Japanese, 20% were Chinese, 11% Hawaiian, 10% haole (white) and 4% 
Portuguese. Throughout this decade McKinley offered the general public, 
which was primarily non-white, a level of education previously obtainable 
only at haole (white) dominated private schools. The person primarily 
responsible for the position of McKinley as a harbinger of democratic 
principles and racial acceptance was Miles E. Carey, the school's principal 
from 1924 to 1948. A graduate of Columbia University and student of
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3. The Art Building stands across the quadrangle from the Home Economics 
Building and repeats the same design. The only differences between the 
two structures are that the Art Building has wood louvered windows rather 
than casement, and a wing extends from the right rear of the building, 
thus causing three of the archways of the arcade to be blind.

4. The Mathematics. Building, connected to the Art Building by an arcade 
similar to that between the Commercial and Home Economics Buildings, 
follows the plan of the Commercial Building, but has different applied 
ornament. Its round arched entries feature a Griffin in the tympanum and 
terminate in a manner reminiscent of an.accolade. Also the two wings 
feature a round arched niche supported by a pendentive on the first story, 
and a set of three blind round arches with wreathed columns on the second. 
A cartouche with garlands is below the second story blind arches.

5. The Marion McCarrell Scott Auditorium, located at the head of the 
quadrangle, is a two-story, T-shaped building with a red tile roof. The 
auditorium is dominated by an outset center section of five bays which 
serves as the main entry. This section has on the first story three 
highly embellished, terra cotta, round arched portals which are flanked 
on either side by a round arched window with a terra cotta ornamented 
tympanum. The second story features pairs of round arched windows with 
wreathed columns in the center three sections. Again a single round 
arched window flanks these major windows. All windows are casement of 
twelve lights. The three center bays terminate with a false front gable 
with a blind arcade while the end bays form mock towers with hipped roofs 
which balance this section. A large octagonal cupola with a red tile 
roof and a smaller bronze cupola with a finial rise from this center 
section.

To either side of the center section extends eight bays with ten light 
casement windows on both stories. The first story windows have round 
arched architraval trim. The facade terminates at each end with an out­ 
set bay with a gabled roof and a large round arched panel. The interior 
of this structure, as with all the others, remains relatively intact. 
The building houses the administrative offices of the school, the library, 
and the auditorium. The central lobby features oct.agonal columns. On 
the exterior of the auditorium, on either side of the base of the T, are 
landscaped areas which are now in a state of disrepair. Numerous coconut 
palms grow in these areas. In the Diamond Head (south-east) area stands 
a broken sun dial, the gift of the class of 1922.
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6. The Senior Core Building, built in 1939, is a two-story, U-shaped, 
reinforced concrete building with a red tile hipped roof with overhanging 
eaves and exposed rafters. Its center section and wings are each five 
bays wide, with the center section's three middle bays having a stepped 
entry. Other access portals are located at the ends of the wings and at 
the intersection of the wings and the center section. These portals all 
feature cast stone decorative panels above their openings. These panels 
depict a man with sharks, and a woman with breadfruit and mo'o (dragons, 
lizards). The building is distinguished by an inset wrap-around lanai 
(porch) on the first and second stories which faces makai (ocean) to 
protect against the rains coming from the mountains.The lanai (porch) 
railings have terra cotta trim on top and feature terra cotta ornamenta­ 
tion which depict Island produce--breadfruit, taro, and papaya. All 
windows are double hung sash with bottom transoms of four lights. The 
wings' front walls have cast stone ornamentation on the first story and 
a second story balcony.

Although this building is not fifty years old, it is included in the 
nomination as it perpetuates the spirit of the older buildings, and is 
one of the more outstanding examples of tropical design applied to a 
school building in the nineteen thirties. Since the end of World War II, 
the Department of Education has built in an austere manner, erecting 
minimal buildings of concrete block in an effort to save tax dollars. 
Thus, this structure is easily recognizable as belonging to a distinct 
period whose time has passed.
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Dewey's, Car'ey was the most significant educator in Hawaii during the 
nineteen twenties and thirties. His most important contribution to 
McKinley was the development of the "core curriculum" of English and 
Social Studies. His objective was to center the teaching of English 
around real social problems, and to encourage democratic participation 
by students as they learned. The program was very popular among teachers 
and students, but ran into opposition within the community. Many people 
considered Carey too pro-Japanese (he spent part of World War II volun­ 
teering his help in a Japanese relocation center on the mainland), and 
they thought his core program to be too liberal, as he was encouraging 
his students to take part in the democratic process of government. Many 
people well understood that participation could lead to control of the 
system, thus those in power regarded his methods, as quite threatening. 
Carey's influence on the history of Hawaii has been long lasting as can 
be readily attested by merely perusing the photographs of illustrious 
alumni which hang on the wall in the halls of the Marion McCarrell Scott 
Auditorium. These include such political leaders as Governor George 
Ariyoshi, former U.S. Senator Hiram Fong, and U.S. Senator Dan Inouye.

As part of the core program, the students did most all the landscape work 
on the campus and helped to maintain the school grounds as well. In 
1924, a chapter of the National Honor Society was established at the 
school, the first such chapter granted a school in an American possession 
outside the United States.

McKinley High School is also architecturally significant as one of the 
most elegant examples of Spanish Colonial revival architecture in Hawaii, 
along with the Hawaiian Electric Building by York and Sawyer, and the 
Y.W.C.A. by Julia Morgan. Designed in the early nineteen twenties, its 
style is typical of the era, a period when architects were self-consciously 
approaching the question of an indigenous architectural design character­ 
istic for Hawaii. From the early twenties through the thirties the 
Mediterranean and Spanish architectural forms experienced much popularity 
in the Islands, as might be noted in such buildings as the O.R. § L. Depot, 
Honolulu Academy of Arts, Federal Building, Honolulu Hale, Royal Hawaiian, 
C. Brewer Building, and numerous residences.

The extensive use of elaborate terra cotta embellishment employed on the 
buildings at McKinley is particularly noteworthy, and represent the most 
lavish use of this material on Spanish Colonial revival style buildings in 
the State.
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The Senior Core Building (6), completed in 1940, is not yet fifty years 
old. This structure is of exceptional significance; its ornamentation 
and open, airy spaces, make it one of the more outstanding examples of 
thirties public architecture to consciously embody a Hawaiian architec­ 
tural style.
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